

City of Hampton

Council Approved Minutes - Final City Council Legislative Session

Mayor Donnie R. Tuck Vice Mayor Jimmy Gray Councilmember Chris L. Bowman Councilmember Eleanor Weston Brown Councilmember Steven L. Brown Councilmember Billy Hobbs Councilmember Chris Snead

STAFF: Mary Bunting, City Manager Cheran Cordell Ivery, City Attorney Katherine K. Glass, Clerk of Council

6:30 PM

Council Chambers

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL

Wednesday, October 13, 2021

Mayor Tuck called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. with all members of the City Council present.

Present: 7 - Councilmember Chris L. Bowman,Councilmember Eleanor Weston Brown,Councilmember Steven L. Brown,Vice Mayor Jimmy Gray,Councilmember Billy Hobbs,Councilmember Chris Snead and Mayor Donnie R. Tuck

DONNIE R. TUCK PRESIDED

INVOCATION - Councilman Steven Brown

Councilman Brown gave the invocation.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAG

MAYOR'S COMMENTS

Mayor Tuck shared that Hampton City Schools' on-time graduation rate for 2021 is 96.86 which is the second highest in the region, second only to Virginia Beach. The drop out rate is the lowest of the fifteen localities in the region at 0.34%.

He also shared that Hampton is considered one of the safest cities in the country. There were only two localities in this region with Hampton in the mid size category and Virginia Beach in the large size category. This was based on a survey of 3,000 cities.

CONSENT AGENDA

Clerk of Council, Katherine Glass, read the protocol for the consent agenda and a summary of the consent items.

Approval of the Consent Agenda

Motion made by Councilmember Snead, seconded by Councilmember Brown, to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion carried by the following vote:

- Aye: 7 Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck
- 1. <u>21-0238</u> Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Council Approved Budget to Accept and Appropriate the FY 2022 Fire Programs (Aid to Localities) Fund Allocation from the Commonwealth of Virginia, Department of Fire Programs

Attachments: FY22 Allocations

Confirmation Letter

Item approved.

- Aye: 7 Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck
- 2. <u>21-0260</u> Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Council Approved Budget to Accept and Appropriate \$670,695 in SMART SCALE Funding from the Virginia Department of Transportation to the Capital Projects Fund for the North Armistead Avenue Reconstruction Project and Transfer Bond Funds of \$480,000 from the Armistead Avenue Road Raising Stormwater Bond Project to the North Armistead Avenue Reconstruction Stormwater Bond Project

Item approved.

Aye: 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck

City (Sess	Council Legisla ion	tive Council Approved Minutes - Final	October 13, 2021
3.	<u>21-0261</u>	Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Council Budget to Accept and Appropriate the 2022 Victims Act-Victim Services Grant Program ("VOCA-VSGP" the Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Service	of Crime ") awarded by
	<u>Attachments:</u>	RESET Signed SOGA 2022 Copy of sarworksheet2022-23 (1) completed 9 8-30-21 Hampton Grant Proposal Overview for RESET 2022-23 REVISED	
	Ауе	Item approved. : 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember N Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, C Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor T	councilmember
4.	<u>21-0274</u>	Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Council Budget to Accept and Appropriate the 2021 Virginia Violence Intervention Program Grant awarded by th Commonwealth of Virginia Department of Criminal Services	a Gun ne
	<u>Attachments:</u>	<u>Grant Award</u> <u>Grant Routing Form and Grant Proposal Overview</u> <u>Grant Application</u>	
	Ауе	 Item approved. 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember V Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, C Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor T 	councilmember
5.	<u>21-0275</u>	Resolution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Council Approved Budget to Accept and Appropriate the 2021 Youth and Gang Violence Community Assessment Program Grant awarded by the Commonwealth of Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services	
	<u>Attachments:</u>	<u>Grant Award</u> <u>Grant Routing Form and Grant Proposal Overview</u> <u>Grant Application</u>	
		Item approved.	

City Council Legislative Session		ative	Council Approved Minutes - Final	October 13, 2021
	Ауе	: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember
6.	<u>21-0272</u>	Budge Fund I	ution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 Council A at and Appropriate \$85,283.28 from the Hazma Balance to the Fire and Rescue Division's Gen ting Budget	t Restricted
	<u>Attachments:</u>	<u>FY21 E0</u>	<u> DY - Account Balance</u>	
		Item a	pproved.	
	Ауе	: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember
7.	<u>21-0269</u>	Approv Fund I the Ge	ution to Amend the Fiscal Year 2022 City Courved Budget to Appropriate \$16,703.91 from the Balance to the Public Works Engineering Depa eneral Fund to be Used for the Acquisition of a Part of Pennsylvania Avenue for Perpetual Rig	e Restricted artment in Cul de sac
		Item a	pproved.	
	Ауе	: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember
8.	21-0242 Resolution to Request the Virginia Department of Transportation Program the Grant Street New Roadway Project into its Six-Year Improvement Plan; to Amend the City Manager's Council Approved FY22 Capital Budget to Incorporate the Project; to Appropriate \$606,811 in Revenue Share Funding to the Capital Projects Fund for the Grant Street New Roadway Project; to Transfer Bond Funds of \$159,517 from the Freeman Drive Reconstruction Bond Project to the Grant Street New Roadway Bond Project; and to Authorize the City Manager or Her Designee to Execute any Necessary Agreements Item approved.			

City Council Legislative Session		ative	Council Approved Minutes - Final	October 13, 2021	
	Aye	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember	
9.	<u>21-0294</u>	Depar \$2,050 FY27- City M	SED Resolution of Support of Application to the tment of Transportation to Request \$2,495,325 6,326) from the Virginia Department of Transpo 28 Revenue Sharing Program and Authorization lanager to Execute Necessary Agreements for al Road Corridor Improvements Project	o (formerly prtation's on for the	
	<u>Attachments:</u>	Pine Ch	apel Rd Improvements Plan		
		Item a	pproved.		
	Aye	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember	
10.	<u>21-0273</u>		ution Authorizing the Donation of Tasers to the y Kentucky Detention Center	Boyd	
		Item a	pproved.		
	Aye	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember	
11.	<u>21-0265</u>	2021; sessic	val of the minutes from the legislative session of the work session of September 8, 2021; the leg on of September 8, 2021, and the ceremonial so mber 22, 2021.	gislative	
		Item a	pproved.		
	Aye	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember W Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Co Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tu	uncilmember	
PRESENTATIONS, PROCLAMATIONS, AWARDS					
	Mayor Tuck read and presented the proclamation in recognition of Volunteer Firefighter John William Schwartz. Mr. Schwartz and others who were in attendance were photographed with the members of Council.				

PUBLIC HEARINGS

Ms. Glass read the protocol for public hearings.

Subdivision Exception

- **12.** <u>21-0235</u> Subdivision Exception Application by Christopher R. and Amy W. Barbour for Exceptions to Subdivision Ordinance Sections 35-10(B)(2), 35-10(B)(6), And 35-71(H) at 13 Thomas Nelson Drive
 - Attachments:
 Applicant's Deferral Request

 Application
 Hardship Narrative Statement

 Hardship Narrative Statement
 Recommended Conditions

 Proposed Boundary Line Adjustment Plat
 Staff Report

 Presentation Staff
 Email from Fire Chief Monk

 Presentation Applicant
 Presentation Applicant

Ms. Glass read the title for the item.

City Planner Garek Hannigan greeted those on the dais and reminded everyone that the subdivision process is completed administratively by the Development Services Center and must be presented to the Planning Commission and City Council when an exception to the ordinance is requested. He explained that, unlike land use applications typically seen by City Council which are measured against policy and plans, subdivision exceptions are requests to modify the subdivision ordinance and require demonstration by the applicant that the request meets all six criteria found within the ordinance. The request for this item was made by the applicant to facilitate a boundary line adjustment.

Mr. Hannigan reviewed the first few slides of the presentation which described the site location and the requested exceptions (sections). He noted that these sections work together to prohibit irregular lots which are prohibited because they are more difficult to develop and redevelop in the future. In this case, the applicant is seeking to conduct a boundary line adjustment which would alter the existing developed 4-sided lot and create a new 8-sided lot.

The next several slides of the presentation displayed images of the lot and surrounding lots as they currently exist, the proposed adjustment, and the proposed

plat.

Mr. Hannigan reviewed the final slides of the presentation which listed the exception criteria and disclosed staff's analysis indicating that the application does not meet criteria 1, 3 and 5. He stated that staff and the Planning Commission recommend denial of the item; however, if approved, staff recommends 1 condition.

Mr. Hannigan opened the floor for questions and/or comments. No questions or comments were posed.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Mayor Tuck opened the public hearing.

Mr. Christopher Barbour, the applicant, gave a presentation. He displayed images of the lot; provided a description of the boundary line; and spoke about advantages and disadvantages of easements. During the presentation, Mr. Barbour also shared how his proposed plan would benefit the City and asked for Council's assistance with the project including their approval for him to purchase the property. The details of his proposal and request for assistance are outlined in the presentation.

Mr. Barbour opened the floor for questions and/or comments from Council.

In response to Mayor Tuck, Mr. Barbour explained that he did not file the request sooner because up until now, the seller was not in a position to sell due to his mortgage being new. He also explained that the back property line would be against the Sarah Bonwell Hudgins line allowing the property to abut Sarah Bonwell Hudgins.

Mayor Tuck reminded Mr. Barbour that Council adopted this subdivision ordinance in 2011; therefore, Council would have to look beyond its actions to grant this exception. In addition, this does not meet the criteria for an exception.

Discussion took place between Vice Mayor Gray and Mr. Barbour. Topics of discussion included Mr. Barbour's intention to build on the property; Mr. Barbour's desire for more depth on his property; future buyers of the property; and the manner in which the fence was built on the property.

Councilwoman Brown inquired about natural elements in the triangle of land that makes it distinctive. Mr. Barbour shared that previously there was a large oak tree on an adjacent property, but it came down years ago.

Mayor Tuck opened the floor for additional questions and/or comments. No

questions or comments were posed. Mayor Tuck closed the public hearing.

A motion was made by Councilman Brown and seconded by Councilmember Bowman, that this Subdivision Exemption be denied. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck

Rezonings

13. <u>21-0271</u> Rezoning Application by HRCN LLC to Rezone a Parcel at the Northeast Corner of Commander Shepard Boulevard and North Campus Parkway [LRSN 13004555] Totaling +3.26 Acres from Hampton Roads Center 2 (HRC-2) District to Limited Commercial (C-2) District with Proffered Conditions to Permit the Development of a Commercial Retail Center

Attachments: Application Staff Report Presentation EDA Support Letter

Ms. Glass read the title for the item.

Chief Planner Donald Whipple greeted those on the dais and noted that this is part 2 of an overall project. Part 1 took place approximately five years ago with the rezoning to allow the development of the Luna Pointe Apartment Buildings.

Mr. Whipple reviewed the slide presentation which provided information about the application related to site location, zoning, the Future Land Use Plan, the Hampton Community Plan, and the Hampton Roads Center North Master Plan.

Mr. Whipple shared that each of the four quadrants of the intersection of North Campus Parkway and Commander Shepard Boulevard are specifically identified as having land use recommendations in the categories of signature classic office site, hotel or retail services.

The next two slides of the presentation displayed images of the concept site plan and a few illustrations of the site from two vantage points as provided by the applicant.

Mr. Whipple reviewed the final slides of the presentation which listed some of the proffers associated with the application and summarized staff's analysis for rezoning

the land from HRC-2 to C-2.

Mr. Whipple stated that the Planning Commission and staff recommend approval of the item with 11 proffered conditions and then opened the floor for questions. No questions were posed.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Mayor Tuck opened the public hearing.

Mr. Stephen Brewer, the attorney for the applicant, thanked Mr. Whipple for the great presentation about the project; thanked Council for the opportunity to appear before them; noted that a few other partners who worked on the project were also in attendance; and thanked staff and all involved.

Mr. Brewer then made the following statement: The staff report indicates that the applicant is seeking to conditionally rezone 3.26 acres in the Hampton Roads Center North Campus. The request is to rezone it from Hampton Roads Center 2 (HRC-2) to Limited Commercial (C-2). I think that the request fits in very well with the development that the applicants affiliate has made of the Luna Pointe Apartments (which I think you are familiar with). If you approve this rezoning, it will enhance the area by permitting a broader range of commercial, retail and service uses. As Mr. Whipple mentioned, this rezoning is necessary to permit the applicant to have the ability to develop a more mixed use project with a wider range of uses than you would have in a typical business park. As Mr. Whipple mentioned, the mixed use approach is becoming more prevalent in business parks as people seek work places with greater services and amenities. A mix of commercial, retail and service uses will attract more small businesses. You've got the five buildings there, so you will have more opportunities for small businesses to occupy the site. They will have more workers and it will provide a greater variety of jobs and wages. The proposed rezoning, we believe, is also consistent with the master plan which encourages compact, high-density mixed use development which will create workable communities and be efficient use of land as well as a high quality design and site planning that is compatible with the surrounding development. What's important to the applicant is the change to the C-2 zoning will permit a little bit of relaxation with regard to some of the typical building and parking setbacks and green space requirements that you would have in your more traditional office park which would not fit so well in some respects on this narrow lot. In connection with the proffers the applicant is making, the rezoning will permit some additional uses which would include things like a spa, a dry cleaning collection, a pick up center, a small scale print shop, maybe a private postal service and various restaurant uses, some with and some without retail alcoholic beverage licenses. Finally, I would mention in your

materials that you received, there's a letter from the Economic Development Authority indicating that the Authority has approved the applicants conceptual site plan and building elevations. In addition, as Mr. Whipple mentioned, both staff and the Planning Commission have recommended approval. The applicant respectfully requests that you approve the application as submitted.

Mr. Brewer opened the floor for questions. No questions were posed.

Mayor Tuck noted that no other individuals had signed up to speak and then closed the public hearing.

A motion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead and seconded by Councilmember Steven Brown, that this Zoning Ordinance - Map be approved with eleven (11) conditions. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck

Ordinances

- **14.** <u>21-0267</u> Ordinance to Amend and Re-Enact the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Hampton, Virginia by Amending Sections 3-2 Entitled, "Table of Uses Permitted" and Section 3-3 Entitled, "Additional Standards on Uses," to Modify Where and How Multifamily Dwellings and Upper-Floor Dwelling Units are Permitted
 - Attachments:
 Clean Table of Uses Permitted Standard zoning districts updated

 Clean_Table of Uses Permitted_Special zoning districts_updated
 Clean Ch 3 Multifamily Addl Standards

 Redline_Table of Uses Permitted_Standard zoning districts_updated
 Redline_Table of Uses Permitted_Standard zoning districts_updated

 Redline_Table of Uses Permitted_Standard zoning districts_corrected
 Redline_Ch 3_Multifamily Addl Standards

 Staff report
 Presentation

Community Development Director Terry O'Neill provided the following background information: In 2019, work sessions and conversations began about ways to improve the quality of development in multifamily projects and ways to be strategic about where these projects should go, taking into consideration that most of Hampton's land is built out. Following those work sessions, City Council directed staff to move forward with a two-part option: (1) a temporary proposal which would

require use permits in all sections of the City except for selected areas that already had enhanced development standards in their zoning districts and (2) develop a base zoning district for Coliseum Central. Last winter, staff proposed phase 1 of the approach; however, at the City Council public hearing, representatives of the Coliseum Central Business Improvement District (BID) voiced their concern about proceeding with this approach; therefore, Council deferred action and allowed staff and Coliseum Central BID representatives a six month period to come to a resolution. After several months of work, it became clear that this was a complicated matter and both parties would not meet that deadline. Council granted an extension at Coliseum Central BID representatives request; however, that deadline could not be met either. Coliseum Central BID representatives reluctantly agreed that Council should move forward with the interim measure while staff continued to work on a solution for their district.

Mr. O'Neill introduced Senior City Planner, Allison Jackura, to provide an update on the modified proposal.

Ms. Jackura provided a brief outline of the presentation; shared a map which displayed the districts where multifamily would currently be allowed by-right; and reviewed a slide which provided information about how other cities regulate multifamily land uses.

The next several slides of the presentation provided information about the proposed phased approach (as mentioned by Mr. O'Neill) and the proposed changes for phase 1 for the two uses (upper-floor dwelling units and multifamily dwellings).

Ms. Jackura emphasized that staff added a clause indicating that existing apartment complexes are legally conforming and will be allowed to continue to operate and maintain themselves as usual with the exception of an expansion, in which case, compliance with these changes would be required.

Ms. Jackura spoke about the proposed additional use standards described in the next few slides of the presentation.

Ms. Jackura summarized the proposed amendments; noted that the zoning ordinance amendment would take effect immediately; and shared the list of community stakeholders who provided feedback following staff presentations.

Ms. Jackura said that staff and the Planning Commission recommend approval of the amendment and then opened the floor for questions and comments.

In response to Vice Mayor Gray's question about height maximums for apartment

buildings, Ms. Jackura explained that different areas have different building height maximums. For example, the downtown special district has height maximums which vary according to location while most buildings in the Coliseum Central area are zoned C-2 which is standard for that area.

Vice Mayor Gray spoke about the need for more apartments and living units downtown, and the need for more density to attract grocery stores and other businesses and asked if the current design standards and maximum heights allow the type of density needed downtown. He asked if that would require the design standards and zoning in downtown to be amended in order to allow more density?

Ms. Jackura noted that she could not speak specifically about the future, but the Goodyear site being built downtown allows for up to six stories; therefore, that district allows for a significant number of stories and has potential to achieve that density.

PUBLIC HEARING:

Mayor Tuck opened the public hearing, announced that no one had signed up to speak at the public hearing and then closed the public hearing.

A motion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead and seconded by Councilmember Billy Hobbs, that this Zoning Ordinance - Text be approved. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck

PUBLIC COMMENT

Ms. Glass read the protocol for the public comment period.

Mr. Marlin Manley greeted those on the dais and made the following statement: I just wanted to come here to say that if I had known earlier that there would have been no approval or a vote for one of the buildings off of Commander Shepard (Boulevard). One thing I just want to sit back and say is that one thing we do need to focus on as a City is I don't want to see another bone yard, for lack of better terms. We have a lot of these projects and a lot of strip malls and different things that are built and eventually businesses don't last and all of a sudden we are just left with this abandoned building on the side. You can go further down Mercury (Boulevard) and you can see something like that. I do not want to see that where I live. I live on Baker Farm Drive and that's right around the corner from me. A lot of people who live in those apartment complexes aren't driving, so unless it's going to be

businesses that are grocery stores or something like that, I do feel like it is probably going to fail. I think our resources can be better spent on repurposing other buildings and other spaces we already have. Since it was also stated earlier that we are a mature City, going down and tearing down more trees and more natural resources that can't be replenished. I just wanted to make that statement. Thank you all for your time and continue the good work. Thank you.

Mr. Craig Knopp greeted those on the dais and made the following statement: It's been a while since I've been here. Sorry about that. I've had a few things come up here lately. A lot of volunteer opportunities that I've taken advantage of. Speaking of volunteering, as you guys know, last year or so, I've been very active. I like to come here to City Council meetings. A couple of years ago, my mind had changed. If you asked me a couple years ago if I ever would have come to a City Council meeting, I would have laughed at you. Now, I look forward to coming here. I love coming here. I love learning new stuff. Like I said, sometimes, it is not the stuff I want to learn - how tall grass is and what the standard is for the City. Long story short is my life has changed over the last couple of years here. I like getting involved in the City. One of those aspects of getting involved is volunteering. I have a couple of groups. I'm heading the outreach portion of that group. I got involved in that and I like going off on my own too. I started a group called the Peninsula Project, nothing official - just a couple of people that like to get together and come out here and do some clean ups and some other little odds and ends and stuff. What I've found is that not everybody wants to go clean. For me, I like volunteering and coaching. That was one aspect I had just started earlier this fall. I love it. That is one of the best things in my life, I think. I had an opportunity and I took it and now I love it. Every week, I show up. I see these kids develop and I hope I'm helping. If not, I'm hoping that the parents are helping. Knowing that I'm sitting there having an impact on somebody else's kids along with my own kids - I love it. I'm always looking for helping people to get out and volunteer. Like I said, not everybody's cup of tea is going out picking up trash and other stuff like that, so what I was wondering is do we have a group or resource out there (this is probably for the City Manager) that is a bank of volunteer groups looking for people? I've asked earlier this year about the social services or people services (I forgot what it's called) and then the other group that was over there that they do the knights for nights and stuff like that. I do have a couple emails on that kind of stuff, but just a general bank of volunteers or groups looking for volunteers that if I came across somebody that said, yeah, I like doing this, then I could point them to the City Manager and say contact them. Do we have anything available? That's all I have.

Mayor Tuck noted that the City Manager will have an opportunity to respond to Mr. Knopp's question. He also thanked Mr. Knopp for his volunteerism, particularly as a challenge in the City is trying to find mentors and positive role models for some of the young people in our City. He thanked all of those in the community who volunteer on a regular basis and have for years. He noted that we can always use more volunteers and then turned the floor over to Ms. Bunting to speak about some of the places Mr. Knopp and others may be able to volunteer.

City Manager Bunting stated that the City does have organizations that inquire about volunteers. She explained that some of the larger cleanup projects require more people and then shared that one area in particular that always needs volunteers is maintaining historic cemeteries that are privately owned and cannot be cleaned by the City. In other cases, we try to link people with volunteer work involving their passion. For example, Bluebird Gap Farm could potentially be a place for someone who loves animals to volunteer. She encouraged those who are interested in volunteering to reach out to the City via the 311 contact center or the City Manager's Office.

GENERAL ITEMS

Appointments

15. <u>21-0277</u> Consideration of an Appointment to the Peninsula Agency on Aging (PAA)

A motion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead that Dr. Ethlyn McQueen-Gibson be reappointed to her first full three-year term which will end on September 30, 2024. The motion carried by the following vote:

- Aye: 7 Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck
- 16.21-0278Consideration of an Appointment to the Hampton Federal AreaDevelopment Authority (HFADA)

A motion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead that Charlotte Hurd be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of stacy Harden's term which will end on October 31, 2025. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck

City Council Legislative Session		ative	Council Approved Minutes - Final	October 13, 2021	
17.	<u>21-0279</u>	Consideration of Appointments to the Animal Control Advisory Committee			
"And Shell Pame Tiffar		"Andy' Shelly Pamel Tiffany	tion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead that John /" Anderson be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of y Keller's term which will end on June 30, 2022, and that ela Christiansen be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of by Young's term which will end on June 30, 2022. The on carried by the following vote:		
	Аує	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmembe Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor	Councilmember	
18.	<u>21-0280</u>		leration of Appointments to the Peninsula S ity (War Memorial)	Stadium	
		A motion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead that Garth W. Walls be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of Chris Willcox' term which will end on February 28, 2022, and that Malik L. Perry be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of Kiufordis Khasidis' term which will end on October 31, 2023. The motion carried by the following vote:			
	Аує	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmembe Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor	Councilmember	
19.	<u>21-0285</u>		leration of Appointments to the Hampton C ission (HCCC)	lean City	
		Adams Septer term w	on was made by Councilmember Chris Sne be reappointed to his second term which nber 30, 2025, and Liam Thurkettle be app hich will end on September 30 2025. The following vote:	will end on pointed to a first	
	Аує	e: 7-	Councilmember Bowman, Councilmembe Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor	Councilmember	

20.21-0289Consideration of Appointments to the Hampton Redevelopment
& Housing Authority (HRHA) Appointments

A motion was made by Councilmember Chris Snead that Shelton R. Tucker be appointed to a first term which will expire on October 30, 2025, and Jeffery R. Sandford be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of a term which will expire on September 30, 2022. The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 7 - Councilmember Bowman, Councilmember Weston Brown, Councilmember Brown, Vice Mayor Gray, Councilmember Hobbs, Councilmember Snead and Mayor Tuck

REPORTS BY CITY MANAGER, CITY COUNCIL, STAFF, COMMITTEES

There were no reports.

MISCELLANEOUS NEW BUSINESS

There were no items of new business.

ADJOURNMENT

The meeting adjourned at 7:46 p.m.

Contact Info: Clerk of Council, 757-727-6315, council@hampton.gov

Donnie R. Tuck Mayor

Katherine K. Glass, CMC Clerk of Council

Date approved by Council _____